

# Minutes of the meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee held at Online Meeting/Herefordshire Council Offices, Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 0LE on Thursday 31 August 2023 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor Polly Andrews (chairperson)

**Councillors: Dave Davies and Peter Hamblin** 

Officers: Licensing technical officer, Senior Solicitor, Litigation and Principal licensing

officer

#### 11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence were received.

### 12. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)

There were no substitutes present at the meeting.

#### 13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.

## 14. APPLICATION FOR A GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT OF LEDBURY CONVENIENCE STORE, 23 HIGH STREET, LEDBURY, HR8 1DS

Members of the licensing sub-committee from the Council's Planning and Regulatory Committee considered the above application, full details of which appeared before the members in their agenda.

Prior to making their decision the Council's Licensing Officer presented the report which outlined the options available to the sub-committee. Two representations had been received from the responsible authorities, Trading Standards and the Local Authority; the set of conditions proposed was accepted by the applicant. One relevant public representation had been received.

The sub-committee then heard from the applicant's representative that:

- The applicant sought to operate a shop with reasonable hours consistent with a typical convenience store:
- The representations and conditions proposed by Trading Standards and the Local Authority had been accepted;
- The applicant would have sought to engage with the member of the public responsible for the representation to attempt to resolve any issues. It was unfortunate that the representation was received late into the consultation period which prevented this approach;
- There had been no other representations from occupiers of immediate properties concerning the potential for a noise nuisance posed by the application; and
- There would be very little activity in and around the shop late at night to cause a noise nuisance.

Following questioning by the sub-committee it was confirmed that:

- The applicant lived in the property immediately above the shop;
- No representations on the application had been received from any members of the public who were resident in the immediate vicinity of the shop; and
- The opening hours proposed in the application were consistent with those of a restaurant that had operated from the premises previously.

The sub-committee carefully considered all the representations, reports and evidence before them. They have had regard to their duties under S4 of the Licensing Act and considered guidance issued under s182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Herefordshire Council's Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 - 2025.

#### **DECISION**

The sub-committee's decision is to grant the application as applied for with the additional conditions which were put forward by Trading Standards and the Local Authority and agreed by the applicant.

#### **REASONS**

The sub-committee has considered the written representation from a member of the public, in particular item 3, and the information presented to the sub-committee. The sub-committee consider that the application with the addition of the above mentioned conditions will promote the licensing objectives.

The meeting ended at 10.21 am

Chairperson